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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
investment, hotel operation, the provision of hotel and property management
and agency services, investment holding and the sale of construction

materials.

2. ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a number of
new and revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The adoption of these
standards has resulted in a change in the format of presentation of the cash
flow statement and replaces the statement of recognised gains and losses
with a statement of changes in equity but has had no material effect on the
results for the current or prior accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior

period adjustment has been required.

Foreign Currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 “Foreign Currency Translation” have eliminated
the choice of translating the income statements of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities at the closing rate for the period,
the policy previously followed by the Group. They are now required to be
translated at an average rate. This change in accounting policy has not had

any material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.

Cash Flow Statements

Under SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash Flow Statements”, cash flows are classified
under three headings — operating, investing and financing, rather than the
previous five headings. Interest and dividends, which were previously
presented under a separate heading, are classified as investing and financing
cash flows. Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as
operating activities, unless they can be separately identified with investing
or financing activities. In addition, the amounts presented for cash and cash
equivalents have been amended to exclude short-term bank loans that are
financing in nature. The re-definition of cash and cash equivalents has
resulted in a restatement of the comparative amounts shown in the cash flow

statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002
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2. ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (continued)

Employee Benefits

SSAP 34 “Employee Benefits” introduces measurement rules for employee
benefits, including retirement benefit plans. Because the Group participates
only in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, the adoption of
SSAP 34 has not had any material impact on the financial statements. Other
changes in measuring employment benefits have not had any material effect

on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified for the revaluation of certain properties and

investments in securities.

The principal accounting policies which have been adopted in preparing
these financial statements and which conform with accounting principles

generally accepted in Hong Kong are as follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements

of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of

acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair
value ascribed to the Group’s share of the separable net assets at the date of
acquisition of a subsidiary and is capitalised and amortised on a straight-
line basis over its useful life of generally not exceeding twenty years from

the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of an interest in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the purchase consideration
over the fair value ascribed to the Group’s share of the separable net assets
of the associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition, is dealt
with in the same manner as that described above for goodwill except that
any goodwill arising on acquisition of a jointly controlled entity with a

specified operation period is amortised over its operation period.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at
cost, less any identified impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results of its associates for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associates plus the premium on acquisition in so far as it has not

already been written off or amortised less any identified impairment loss.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities
Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred to as jointly

controlled entities.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are included in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of the net assets of the
jointly controlled entities plus the premium paid on acquisition in so far as
it has not already been written off or amortised less any identified impairment
loss. The Group’s share of post-acquisition results of jointly controlled

entities is included in the consolidated income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

The Company’s investments in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost,
as reduced by any identified impairment loss. Results of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable.

Other joint venture arrangements

Investments made by means of joint venture structures which do not result
in the Group having joint control with the other venturers are accounted for
as subsidiaries (where the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an enterprise), associates (where the Group is in a
position to exercise significant influence) or other investments (where the

Group exercises neither control nor significant influence).

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially

measured at cost.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at

fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised gains and losses
are included in net profit or loss for the period. For other securities, unrealised
gains and losses are dealt with in equity, until the security is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is

included in net profit or loss for the period.

Development properties

Completed properties held for sale and properties under development are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost
of land, development expenditure, other attributable costs and financial
expenses capitalised. Net realisable value is determined by reference to

management estimates based on prevailing market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Development properties (continued)
Properties for development are stated at cost, as reduced by any identified
impairment loss. Cost comprises the consideration for acquisition of land

use rights, development expenditure and other attributable expenses.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the

income statement.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Land and buildings on Over the unexpired lease term
medium-term lease

9% — 15%

Others 20% — 30%

Plant and machinery

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses

are recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their

investment potential, any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value. Any revaluation
increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment properties is
credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless
the balance on this reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in
which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement.
Where a decrease has previously been charged to the income statement and
a revaluation increase subsequently arises, this increase is credited to the

income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property
revaluation reserve attributable to that property is transferred to the income

statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the

unexpired term of the relevant lease is 20 years or less.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets concerned
to the Group. Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at their fair
values at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor,
net of interest charges, is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total
leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged
to the income statement over the period of the relevant lease so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations

for each accounting period.
All other leases are classified as operating leases and the annual rentals

receivable (payable) are credited (charged) to the income statement on a

straight line basis over the relevant lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other inventories
Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for
items which are non-assessable or disallowed. Timing differences arise from
the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income and expense in a
different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the
financial statements. The tax effect of timing differences, computed using
the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial
statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will

crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Revenue recognition

Income from properties developed for sale is recognised upon the issuance
of a completion certificate or the execution of a binding sales agreement,
whichever is the later. Profit or loss arising from the outright sale of an
entire development property prior to completion is recognised when a binding
sales contract becomes unconditional and it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the sale will flow to the Group. Deposits received
from forward sales of properties are carried in the balance sheet under

current liabilities.

Sale of other goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title has

passed.
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WA &R ()
T I % 75~ I G R ) S B A 2 S
4 R ST #2 e 5 4 43 ey ke

A R TH B A WA % 85 8 ek A
A AF 105 i 3 o

B SRAT A 3 B WA B 2 B AR RN B K
Z WA T 4 R ] EL A R B 255 1 K
A SR M R R AR

4 W 2 I 5 A A 4 2
i 3 T R

I ITE

WA 5 LA 5 8 B2 5 4 O
WA LRZAN i B AL W 2 B R
EXRAETGUSHE R Z AR HRE
T i W o R S 4T E AR 2 48 4 3 R RE A
R

T AR IR IR AR M AN 2 B E
LAMGEGHE B 2 iR E i
Je B R IA B R 30 TR 5 - 2 St R A
P AR 2 M S22 R (AN 5 B 2 HE 4
7 458 A A S [ 2 S T B A A o 5 S
S0 22 Y S AR ) T R R A WA B
B

Bk EFIE A

A £ ) 35 7 A A OB IR AR B A E OB R
R AR R T B R BE RO R R T T
BT o B AR A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Income from hotel operation, hotel and property management and commission

from provision of agency services are recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from the disposal of investments is recognised when the sales

agreement becomes unconditional.

Interest income from bank deposits, sales instalments and loans receivable
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at

the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s rights to

receive payment have been established.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the Hong Kong Dollar are initially
recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such currencies are retranslated
at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on

exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations
are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred
to the Group’s exchange equalisation reserve. Such translation differences
are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which the operation is

disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are based on a certain
percentage of employees’ payroll are charged to the income statement when

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Turnover represents the aggregate of proceeds from the sale of development properties,

rental income, interest income on instalments receivable, sale of construction materials,

income from hotel operations, hotel and property management and commission from agency

services during the year as follows:

Sales of completed properties

Sales of properties for development

Sales of properties for development through
disposal of a property holding subsidiary

Rental income

Interest income on instalments receivable

Sale of construction materials

Income from hotel operations

Income from hotel and property management

Commission from agency services
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4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s turnover for the year was derived mainly from activities carried out in the

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) other than Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group’s

turnover and segment results by business segment is as follows:

Income statement
for the year ended
31st December, 2002

REVENUE

RESULTS

Segment results

Other operating income

Write-down of inventories of
completed properties

Allowance for doubtful debts

Share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Impairment loss in interests
in jointly controlled
entities and an associate

Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

BER

NEEER

NERE

HE Hotel and

BENR property

NERE  NERE Saleof  BEZE management HHEE

Property Property construction Hotel and property Other L
development  investment materials  operations agency  operations Consolidated
E¥Trn  EMTn  E¥Tm  BETn  BETn  BETR BETr
HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
792,221 10,245 258,011 5,866 13,989 - 1,080,332
142,386 2,341 30,518 1,479 (4,051) 172,673
10,537 341 26,745 - - 24,535 62,158
(15,180) - - - - - (15,180
(18,855) (18) (4,662) - - (567) (24,102)
111,823 7,009 3,483 (6,405) 1,806 593 118,309
(478) - - (5,063) - - (5,541)
(54,855)
253,462
(56,317)
(5,020) 7,378 - - 237 - 2,595
199,740
(58,134)
141,606
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Balance sheet as at
31st December, 2002

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly
controlled entities

Investments in securities
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

Other information for the year
ended 31st December, 2002

Additions of property,
plant and equipment
- Consolidation of a former
jointly controlled entity
- Others
Depreciation and amortisation

BER
NEEER
NERE
HE Hotel and
BEENH property
NEZE  NERE Saleof  BEEE management HEEE
Property Property construction Hotel and property Other &
development  investment materials  operations agency  operations Consolidated
BETT  EETT  EETRT  BETr  BEFn  BEFn  EETx
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$000
4,883,584 316,453 530,057 22,680 3,304 614 5,756,692
718,684 117,123 - - (648) - 835,159
551,414 270,271 - 26,222 7,135 - 855,042
13,907
545,429
8,006,229
689,582 - 43,017 - 1,880 1,700 736,179
2,727,258
3,463,437
- - 215,289 - - -
4,130 - 3,539 - 106 -
1,955 1,047 10,292 - 521 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002
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4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Income statement for
the year ended
31st December, 2001

REVENUE

RESULTS
Segment results
Other operating income
Net realised gain on
disposal of certain
interest in a subsidiary
Write-down of inventories
of completed properties
Allowance for doubtful debts
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities
Impairment loss in interests in
jointly controlled entities
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit from operations

Net realised gain on disposal of
certain interest in a subsidiary

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

5 R

WEERR

WERE

#E Hotel and

2EYH property

WEER  WERE Saleof  VEJEE®E management  HAEE

Property Property  construction Hotel ~ and property Other A
development  investment materials ~ operations agency  operations Consolidated
T BEFr BEFr BEFC BEFr BEFr BETx
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
245,035 10,948 34,483 - 8,807 - 299,273
(6,554) 1210 933) (8,790) S s06])
3,351 - 1,632 - 14,467 19,450
111,581
(27,402) - - - - (27,402)
(13,042) - - (1,804) (5,254) (20,100)
90,998 9,850 20,329 (4,920) 367 185 116,809
. . S @460 S0000)  (57.467)
(62,408)
65,396
91,435
(39.161)
(7,614) 9,274 - 381 - 2,041
119,711
(24,097)

95,014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

5 R
WEERR
PERE
il Hotel and
BEYH property
NEERE  YERE Saleof  THWEEE  management  HEE
Property Property  construction Hotel and property Other A
development  investment materials operations agency operations  Consolidated
EWFE kB kBT REFC BEFr BEFr EEFX
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
Balance sheet as at
31st December, 2001
ASSETS
Segment assets 4,308,267 173,238 93,921 - 964 553 4,576,943
Interests in associates 714,906 104,922 - - (707) - 819,121
Interests in jointly
controlled entities 487,347 258,200 151,083 40,015 4,191 15,732 956,568
Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity - - 30,641 - - - 30,641
Investments in securities 42,457
Unallocated corporate assets 436,258
Consolidated total assets 6,801,988
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 474,021 3,165 35,583 - 1,634 2,374 516,777
Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,071,790
Consolidated total liabilities 2,588,567
Other information for the year
ended 31st December, 2001
Additions of property,
plant and equipment 3,052 17 1,106 - 130 -
Depreciation and amortisation 997 627 2,752 1,709 503 219

83

Substantially all the assets are located in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

5. Ht&EERA 5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
e Bl A Dividend income

— 3 b By — unlisted shares

— by — listed shares

SRAT A7 3 o W B KA i A

Interest income on bank deposits and loans receivable

o B 3 (A BB B Refund of PRC value-added tax
MEREYEZ CEBIFIE  Net realised gain on disposal of investment properties
e P A R 2 Net realised gain on disposal of
ESEETRE € jointly controlled entities
HE—HEEARZ Net realised gain on disposal of
S g TR an associate
HERFHRES S Net realised gain on disposal of
B ETRE € trading securities
LEFRFIEEEB S Z Net realised gain on disposal of
B ETRE € non-trading securities
HEEES R 2 RKEH Net unrealised gain on
Tl 45 trading securities
HoAt e A Other income

84

2002 2001

B FT #EHT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
494 1,625

- 89

5,586 5,700
23,308 =
341 -
5,125 -
350 -
5,102 -
1,253 -

- 5,433

20,599 6,603
62,158 19,450
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

6. NET REALISED GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

Gain from disposal of a 19.74% interest in
Shanghai Allied Cement Limited (“SAC”) as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of a
90% interest in a property development company,

the details of which are described in note 31(d)
Gain from disposal of a 20.36% interest in SAC

through private placements of shares of SAC
held by the Group
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2002 2001
BETT o
HK$°000 HK$’000
- 111,581
- 91,435
- 203,016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

7. RBEZEA
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7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Owned assets
Assets held under finance leases

Less: amount capitalised to property under development

Amortisation and impairment of:
Goodwill on consolidation included in other
operating expenses
Goodwill on acquisition of associates and
jointly controlled entities included in

other operating expenses

Auditors’ remuneration
Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
Exchange gains, net
Rentals from land and buildings under
operating leases less outgoings
of HK$3,447,000
(2001: HK$3,179,000)
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2002 2001
BEFT Ve AT
HKS$’000 HK$’000
14,529 5,974
8 3
(1,017) (894)
13,520 5,083
3,057 2,747
277 2,955
16,854 10,785
3,741 3,980
9,363 10,805
65,734 50,189
(30) (509)
(6,798) (7,769)




XEHPEREERAT —ZT-_FFH

8. HM¥KEH

BT
AT H R LIE L

Al R B K SRR (M AE27)

W (Bat27)

il R R

AR R AR
H A B 3K

B AL R ) 3

AR BE N E AL 2 A6 B R
A& g — M A A HEHE
LG B EE 2 G
AL F63% (. FEF 4
6.4%) wHH -

MEBERKTE @) HE-—ZZ-_F+-A=+-BIEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

8. FINANCE COSTS

2002 2001
BETT T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Interest on
Bank loans and overdrafts 85,871 31,476
Convertible loan notes (note 27) 633 1,521
Promissory notes (note 27) 18,030 13,671
Obligations under finance lease 8 2
Other loans wholly repayable
within five years 10,359 14,151
114,898 60,821
Less: amount capitalised on properties under
development (58,581) (21,660)
56,317 39,161

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general borrowing pool and is
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 6.3% (2001: 6.4%) to expenditure on

qualifying assets.
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Fees

Other emoluments (executive directors):

Salaries and other benefits

Performance related bonus

Contributions to provident and retirement

benefit schemes

2002 2001
BETT T e
HK$’000 HKS$°000
74 91

2,747 2,949

- 2,300

90 90

2,837 5,339
2,911 5,430

The amounts disclosed above include directors’ fees of HK$20,000 (2001: HK$20,000)
payable to independent non-executive directors.

Emoluments of the directors are within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
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2002 2001
EExgH #HHUH
Number of Number of
directors directors

7 11

1 -

1




XEHPEREERAT —ZT-_FFH

10. EEMS

A S A2 A |
f&— A (ZFT—4F— )
A5 O © A5G R B R
o o H R Uy (=B F —
o) BEmHEZKE
[

Hr b B A0 W i s

REAW

O3 15 4 AR AR AR A
wt & kK

Al R B 2 o A R

1,000,000%s 7C 8¢ LA

1,000,001 75 — 1,500,000%5 7T
1,500,001 7t — 2,000,000% J¢

MEBERKTE @) HE-—ZZ-_F+-A=+-BIEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

10. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals included one (2001: one) director of the Company whose
emoluments has been included in note 9 above. The emoluments of the remaining four

(2001: four) individuals are as follows:

2002 2001
B F T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind 4,290 4,494
Performance related bonus - 342
Contributions to provident fund and retirement

benefit schemes 287 323
4,577 5,159

Their emoluments are within the following bands:
2002 2001
ES8E € A2 H
Number of Number of
employees employees
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
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11. TAXATION
2002 2001
BT W T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
The charge (credit) comprises:
PRC income tax
Company and subsidiaries
— current year provision 37,472 8,157
— over-provision in prior years (9,639) (6,896)
Share of tax of associates 2,402 2,764
Share of tax of jointly controlled entities 17,388 19,550
47,623 23,575
Deferred tax (note 29) 10,511 522
58,134 24,097

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the Group companies operating in

Hong Kong do not have any assessable profit for the year. Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries

operating in the PRC are eligible for tax exemptions and concessions. The PRC income tax

is calculated at the rates applicable to respective subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2002 2001
BT VX R
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 97,198 102,782
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Adjustment to the share of results of
a subsidiary based on dilution
of its earnings per share - (160)
Earnings for the purpose of dilutive earnings
per share 97,198 102,622
2002 2001
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 8,490,704,474 8,490,678,716

The computation of diluted earnings per share for both years does not assume the conversion
of the Company’s outstanding convertible loan notes since their exercise would result in

an increase in earnings per share from continuing ordinary operations.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for both years does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s outstanding share options and warrants as the exercise prices are higher

than the average market price per share.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

THE GROUP

COST

At Ist January, 2002

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Acquired on acquisition
of subsidiaries

Consolidation of a former
jointly controlled entity

Transfer from properties
under development
upon completion

Disposals and write-offs

At 31st December, 2002

DEPRECIATION

At Ist January, 2002

Exchange adjustments

Consolidation of a former
jointly controlled entity

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals
and write-offs

At 31st December, 2002

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st December, 2002

At 31st December, 2001

EEERE ETERBE EYERF
ZHBEN  2HBES  ZTRHEX £ KH
THREF LHRETR BENE R#fb
Land and Land and Hotel Leasehold
buildings in buildings properties MER improvements,
Hong Kong in the PRC in the PRC e furniture, "E
onmedium  onmedium  on medium Plantand fixtures and Motor EH)
term lease term lease term lease machinery equipment vehicles Total
E¥TR EBTR E¥TR E¥TR BE¥TR BE¥TR B¥TR
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
413 7,986 - - 26,945 19,164 54,508
- 81 - - 63 81 225
- 292 - 2415 2817 4,825 10,349
- - - - 391 1 618
- 133,292 - 236,993 1,408 4379 376,072
- - 22,680 - - - 22,680
- (174) - - (2,616) (2,378) (5,168)
413 141,477 22,680 239,408 29,008 26,298 459,284
88 1,709 - - 18,646 11,758 32,201
- 2 - - 36 41 99
- 34,574 - 123,680 963 1,566 160,783
47 3427 - 4,622 3,476 2,965 14,537
- (14) - - (2,008) (2,014) (4,036)
135 39,718 - 128,302 21,113 14,316 203,584
278 101,759 22,680 111,106 7,895 11,982 255,700
325 6,277 - - 8,299 7,406 22,307
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

THE COMPANY
COST

At 1st January, 2002
Additions

Disposals

At 31st December, 2002
DEPRECIATION

At 1st January, 2002
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31st December, 2002

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st December, 2002

At 31st December, 2001

£1&-
ERRBE
Furniture, bat
fixtures and Motor 5t
equipment vehicles Total
BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
15,389 8,601 23,990
367 363 730
(743) (73) (816)
15,013 8,891 23,904
12,061 6,029 18,090
1,173 1,012 2,185
(248) (11) (259)
12,986 7,030 20,016
2,027 1,861 3,888
3,328 2,572 5,900

The net book value of leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment of the
Group includes an amount of HK$29,000 (2001: HK$37,000) in respect of assets held

under finance leases.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

rEH
THE GROUP

VX R

HK$’000
VALUATION
At Ist January, 2002 172,119
Exchange adjustments 951
Reclassifications from properties for sale 146,122
Disposals (27,334)
Surplus on revaluation 24,482
At 31st December, 2002 316,340

Investment properties were valued on an open market value at 31st December, 2002 by
Messrs. Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of Chartered Surveyors, on an open market
existing use basis. This valuation gave rise to a revaluation surplus of HK$24,482,000 in
which revaluation surplus attributable to the Group of HK$17,515,000 has been credited to
the investment property revaluation reserve and deferred tax effect of HK$6,167,000 arising
on revaluation has been credited to deferred taxation.

Investment properties are all located in the PRC and comprise of properties held under:

rEE

THE GROUP
2002 2001
BT T & T T
HK$’000 HKS$°000
Long lease 107,900 62,000
Medium-term lease 208,440 110,119
316,340 172,119
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

rEH
THE GROUP
2002 2001
BT T T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
PROPERTIES IN THE PRC, AT COST
Balance at 1st January 1,889,316 1,286,586
Exchange adjustments 5,526 -
Additions 94,844 872,943
Reclassifications from properties under development 88,914 16,281
Disposals (158,033) (25,530)
Reclassifications to properties under development (3,812) (260,964)
Balance at 31st December 1,916,755 1,889,316
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
Balance at 1st January 5,391 6,245
Eliminated on disposal (5,391) (854)
Balance at 31st December - 5,391
NET BOOK VALUE
Balance at 31st December 1,916,755 1,883,925
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investments, at cost less

impairment losses

Amounts due from subsidiaries, less allowances

Tian An China Investments Company Limited Annual Report 2002

VNS

THE COMPANY
2002 2001
B FT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
397,511 399,325
3,804,122 3,682,528
4,201,633 4,081,853

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2002 are set out in note 39.

During the year, the Group acquired certain subsidiaries, details of which are set out in

note 31.

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets
Goodwill on acquisition,

less amortisation (note b)
Amounts due from associates

Less: allowances

96

KEH

THE GROUP

2002 2001
B FIT B WETFor
HK$’000 HK$°000
710,222 690,093

1,491 1,655
123,924 130,797

(478) (3,424)
835,159 819,121
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(a) Details of the principal associates at 31st December, 2002 are set out in note 40.

(b) Goodwill on acquisition

COST
At Ist January, 2002 and
31st December, 2002

AMORTISATION
At Ist January, 2002
Amortisation for the year

At 31st December, 2002

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st December, 2002

At 31st December, 2001
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

R T
HK$’000

2,344

689
164

853

1,491

1,655
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

17. RBEE QAR ZE & 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
(78)
Az R B B A The following details have been extracted from the financial statements of the Group’s
BB N ) Z B RS EE R principal associates and adjusted, where appropriate, to conform with the Group’s accounting
WE R (WE ) DS policies.
A 4R H 2 B TR o
REEBRAE BEERR EESHEARR
BARQF BRRQF BEREH
Tianjin Jack Rock Zhao Qing Golf
International Development and Development
Building Co., Ltd. Limited Co., Ltd.
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

BT BWTIT BETT BETIT EBEFT EETRT
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$ 000

KEEFAE Results for the year
BEH Turnover 62,960 68,461 12,897 12,924 11,629 12,583
b o il Profit (loss) before

A (s 18) taxation 29,513 37,928 2,001 (7,436)  (7,100)  (7,947)
JRE A 2 B B i ks Share of profit (loss)

(518) before taxation 7,378 9,482 960 (3,569) (2,867) (2,710)
B Bk R Financial position
FIE L E Non-current assets 661,957 602,840 1,056,193 1,060,928 287,911 284,965
B Current assets 21,259 21,992 78,070 86,215 42,014 42,018
) A E Current liabilities (26,761)  (24,623)  (88,665) (101,709) (98,443) (104,654)
F ) A Non-current liabilities (259,450) (232,165)  (2,354)  (2,584) (45,401) (39,755)
T E Net assets 397,005 368,044 1,043,244 1,042,850 186,081 182,574
FEAL 2 & Share of net assets 99,251 92,011 500,757 500,568 75,140 62,258
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

18. REAREEZES LA 2 #EHE 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

xE
THE GROUP
2002 2001
BT T T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
JRE A1k V5 T e e (L e R Share of net assets less impairment losses 747,948 831,624
H e B AR 2 TR IR B Goodwill on acquisition, less amortisation
(Htatz) (note b) 447 9,010
e [R] #2 1fi) A F) R K Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 145,254 153,478
I - HE A Less: allowances (38,607) (37,544)
855,042 956,568
N
THE COMPANY
2002 2001
BT T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
I WG 7N AE Unlisted investment, at cost 4,333 4,333
I ] 2 /) R R Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 1,543 33
5,876 4,366
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

18. REFZH A2 ME (K)
Wit
GHES SHCETTPS ) S 2 S iy

=1 HZ G R R B RE41 -

BE-EZ—HF+_A=T—HIE &%
B A b g K R AT R D (T g K
PB 1) Z60% i o b 3 /K¢ 2y 7 B A r
ZREARE RE A E KT - H L
KEGEREGFRREGERETRZE
MER-FEX_FE=1 1A #EHH
R SR ML O > i DL i K R R A AR
LM Z W@ AT At g W KA
R WA 5 A AR 4 B 2 BB S R A

TR E T AEFL A  [H] RR K 2
e [7 2  2 m) 45 AE  AR o T — [R]  [] 4 )

2 FIRE 28 2 A ET AT Ak ] 4 EE (BRAE SR A B
G LT RS 31 % B A5 2 Ak 5T
R o 1 R I JH R T < 2 IR UG A
1328 N 7E 4,000,000 7T 2 6 (H YE A > [A] IRF
I Rl i I /N /N
1,063,000k JC 2 HE 45 o

REBE R SRR A TS
A0 A 40 ST 2 3

[F] 2 ] 2 ) 45 298 e 4 o A T 28 I (] 2 ) 4
A 2 RE 45 FLAGFE AT i a0 4 B A A W 1T 4
R [ U R 2R N1 57,467,000 o 2
I E A o 1 L o — R [ 2 4 ) R
ZAGFE AT A [E] 4 B Fe T B 26585 % 4T Bl
FAR R AR A B 4 U R AR T RE AL AR 2 Af
JH PP BB o 7 5 — [ 3 ] 428 7 2 W R i 2
A 51 AT e [e] 4 B 4 5% A R T RE AT 2
T 22 Ak F TR I AT A AR 2 T A A

18.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Details of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31st December, 2002 are

set out in note 41.

At 31st December, 2001, the Group had a 60% interest in Shanghai Allied
Cement Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai SAC”), a corporate equity joint venture established
in the PRC and engaged in the manufacturing of cement. As a result of the
approval of the amendments to the joint venture contract and joint venture
articles of Shanghai SAC by the relevant government regulatory authority on
14th March, 2002, Shanghai SAC became a subsidiary of the Group. Since
then, the results, assets and liabilities of Shanghai SAC have been consolidated

into those of the Group.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, losses were sustained by two
jointly controlled entities engaged in hotel operations. The estimated recoverable
amount of the interest in one jointly controlled entity, which represents the
estimated value in use after discounting the estimated future cash flows at a
discount rate of 5.31%, is less than its carrying amount and an impairment loss
of HK$4,000,000 has been charged to the income statement. Also, an allowance
of HK$1,063,000 has been made against the amount due from the other jointly

controlled entity.

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, a jointly controlled entity was
liquidated upon expiry of the joint venture period and losses were sustained by
two jointly controlled entities engaged in hotel operations. The estimated
recoverable amounts of interests in these jointly controlled entities are less than
their respective carrying amounts and impairment losses of HK$57,467,000
have been charged to the income statement. The estimated recoverable amount
of interest in one jointly controlled entity represents the estimated value in use
after discounting the estimated future cash flows at a discount rate of 5.85%
and that of the other jointly controlled entity represents the estimated net selling
price of the entity by reference to the estimated market value of the hotel held

by this entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Notes:

(b) Goodwill on acquisition

COST

At 1st January, 2002

Eliminated on liquidation of a jointly controlled entity
Reclassified to goodwill on acquisition

of a subsidiary

At 31st December, 2002

AMORTISATION

At Ist January, 2002

Amortisation for the year

Eliminated on liquidation of a jointly controlled entity
Reclassified to goodwill on acquisition

of a subsidiary

At 31st December, 2002

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st December, 2002

At 31st December, 2001
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HKS$’000

15,019
(940)
(9,492)
4,587
6,009
113
(940)
(1,042)

4,140

447

9,010



MBRERME ) #

Tian An China Investments Company Limited Annual Report 2002

BT _HF+-_A=+—HILEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

18. RERBEH QAT 2 #
= (48)
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

The following details have been extracted from the financial statements of the Group’s
principal jointly controlled entities and adjusted, where appropriate, to conform with the

Group’s accounting policies.

FINK R EER LBBAKE FIEERR
BRAH BRAH NEEREH
Shenzhen Tian An Shanghai Allied Shenzhen ITC
Cyberpark Co., Ltd. Cement Co., Ltd. Tian An Co., Ltd
1.1.2002 to
2002 2001  14.3.2002 2001 2002 2001

BEFT BT BETm ENTr BEFT EETxT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Results for the year

Turnover 521,785 563,354 53,283 239,314 18,824 17,594
Profit before tax 220,680 203,822 11,092 33,881 7,598 14,685
Share of profit before tax 110,340 101,911 6,655 20,329 3,799 7,343
Financial position

Non-current assets 187,643 43,348 - 217,681 474,386 494,799
Current assets 554,636 379,349 - 224,839 38,907 34,352
Current liabilities (274,709)  (70,290) - (191,089) (143,529) (125,979)
Non-current liabilities (26,274) - - (39,567)  (83,945) (107,204)
Net assets 441,296 352,407 - 211,864 285,819 295,968
Share of net assets 220,648 176,204 - 127,118 142,910 147,984
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

BERZAE
BRAR
Yuexiu Tian An

Building Company

tREHEE
AEARAF
Beijing Nanhu

Hwayuan Apartment

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

LEREEHE
BREREH
Shanghai Min Hoong
Real Estate

Limited Co., Ltd. Development Co., Ltd.
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
BETFT BETIC BEFT #WFFr BT BETR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$ 000
Results for the year
Turnover 29,234 32,404 - - - 12,160
Loss before tax (7,285) (8,512) - - - (408)
Share of loss before tax (5,464) (6,384) - - - (245)
Financial position
Non-current assets 45,071 53,515 201,888 262,445 308,342 287,667
Current assets 10,728 20,462 95,671 7,616 - -
Current liabilities (18,324)  (23,883) 99) (74) - -
Non-current liabilities 33) (33)  (64,360) (38,071) - -
Net assets 37,442 50,061 233,100 231,916 308,342 287,667
Share of net assets 28,082 37,546 128,205 127,554 185,005 172,600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

19. BHERE

B &

FFER T 2@ 5
J b By He A SRAEAE
BT A (E
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7 UG BT B
% T fH

J b By #e A SRAEAE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Non-Current Investments
Non-trading securities

Unlisted shares, at fair value

Unlisted bonds, at cost

Current Investments

Trading securities

Shares listed outside Hong Kong,

at market value

Unlisted shares, at fair value
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TEM

THE GROUP
2002 2001
B FT #EHT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
4,121 8,673
472 -
4,593 8,673
3,307 3,969
6,007 29,815
9,314 33,784
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

20. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

COST

At Ist January, 2002

Adjustment to fair value of net assets acquired
in prior year (note a)

Reclassified from goodwill on acquisition of

a jointly controlled entity

At 31st December, 2002

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2002
Adjustment to charges made in prior year (note a)
Reclassified from goodwill on acquisition of
a jointly controlled entity
Provided for the year

Impairment loss recognised during the year

At 31st December, 2002

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st December, 2002

At 31st December, 2001

Notes:

rRH
THE GROUP

#WT T
HK$°000
70,963
(15,408)
9,492
65,047
15,878
(617)
1,042
2,858

816

19,977

45,070

55,085

(a) During the year, a subsidiary of SAC at the time of acquisition of SAC by the Group in May

2001 was put into liquidation and an adjustment was made to the carrying value of the identifiable

assets and liabilities of SAC at the date of acquisition. Accordingly, the goodwill on acquisition
of SAC was reduced by HK$15,408,000. The goodwill over-amortised in 2001, amounting to
HK$617,000 has been credited to income in the current year.

(b) The amortisation periods adopted for goodwill range from 10 to 20 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

21. RHPEBEIZMERE

i 2 AT

(F) B % T% 357,843,000
B (ZFF—
105,848,000% yu.) % 1]
HBFEARE-

() B % 1.9 26,818,000
Wt (B E—AF )

LKz ESE
N DA 4
e

22. Hibhr &

JE R

TE 5

AT

i A HAt A7 B 3 1 A (L 2
5l o

21,

Included in inventories of properties in the PRC are:

(a)

(b)

22,

INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES IN THE PRC

Completed properties carried at net realisable value of HK$57,843,000 (2001:

HK$105,848,000).

Completed properties of HK$6,818,000 (2001: nil) transferred from trade receivables

of Shanghai SAC in lieu of cash settlement.

OTHER INVENTORIES

Raw materials

Work in progress

Finished goods

All inventories are carried at cost.
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THE GROUP

2002 2001
BETT # W T
HKS$°000 HK$’000

19,353 2,250

1,693 570

5,719 1,046

26,765 3,866
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows credit periods ranging from 30 to 120 days to its trade customers. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which are included in trade and other

receivables, deposits and prepayments, at the reporting date:

rEE

THE GROUP
2002 2001
E T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
Not yet due 40,048 31,729
Overdue within 3 months 114,520 17,709
Overdue between 4 and 6 months 129,502 1,013
Overdue between 7 and 12 months 17,269 5,226
Overdue over 12 months 34,019 44,211
335,358 99,888
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

24. BESEMNSERR
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5 16 B 5 e H At FE AT R 3K
) e oy A R

B 1

s = | H A
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25. B

e AR
20,000,000,000/1%
% 0.20% 7T

24. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, which are included in trade and other

payables, at the reporting date:

Not yet due

Overdue within 3 months
Overdue between 4 and 6 months
Overdue between 7 and 12 months

Overdue over 12 months

Included in trade payables is a secured trade payable of HK$43,011,000 (2001: nil).

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
20,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.20 each
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rEH
THE GROUP
2002 2001
BT T 5 W Tor
HK$’000 HK$°000
180,467 157,005
105,801 18,221
14,619 3,241
20,372 2,222
105,277 129,223
426,536 309,912
KEERAKATA
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2002 2001
BT T 5 W Tor
HK$’000 HK$°000
4,000,000 4,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st January, 2001

Issue of shares on exercise of warrants
At 31st December, 2001 and

Ist January, 2002
Issue of shares on exercise of warrants

At 31st December, 2002

Ordinary shares

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

BREME
0.208 T2
EERYA
Number of SHEE
ordinary shares Nominal
of HK$0.20 each value
HEWET T
HK$’000
8,490,658,332 1,698,132
46,000 9
8,490,704,332 1,698,141
250 -
8,490,704,582 1,698,141

There was no change in the authorised share capital of the Company in either of the years

presented.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, 250 shares (2001: 46,000 shares) of HK$0.20

each were issued at par for cash as a result of the exercise of warrants by warrantholders.

Warrants

Pursuant to the rights issue of new shares in 2000, 1,698,131,666 new warrants to subscribe

for 1,698,131,666 new shares at a subscription price of HK$0.20 per share were issued.

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, the registered holders of 46,000 warrants

exercised their rights to subscribe for 46,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.20 per share

for cash. The remaining warrants lapsed on 7th November, 2001.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Warrants (continued)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 30th November, 2001, a bonus issue of
warrants in the proportion of one warrant for every five shares held was
approved. 1,698,140,866 new warrants to subscribe for 1,698,140,866 new
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.20 per share were issued. During the
year ended 31st December, 2002, registered holders of 250 warrants exercised
their rights to subscribe for 250 shares of the Company at HK$0.20 per
share for cash. At 31st December, 2002, the Company had outstanding
1,698,140,616 warrants with an aggregate subscription price of
HK$339,628,123 which are exercisable at any time on or before 3rd
December, 2004.

Share Option Scheme — The Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 27th January, 1999 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible employees (including executive directors),
and will expire on 26th January, 2009. Under the Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

No options were granted nor were exercised during the year ended 31st
December, 2002 and 2001. At 31st December, 2001, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and remaining outstanding under
the Scheme was 61,000,000, which all lapsed during the year ended 31st
December, 2002. Under the Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant excluding any shares
issued pursuant to the Scheme. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any eligible employee is not permitted to exceed
25% of the aggregate number of shares of the Company issued and issuable

under the Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share Option Scheme — The Company (continued)

A consideration of HK$10 is payable on the grant of an option. Options granted must be
held for a minimum period of six months before they can be exercised. A maximum of
50% of the options may be exercised during the first to sixth month of the 2-year exercisable
period (commencing on the expiry of six months after the date of grant) and the remaining
50% are exercisable during the thirteenth to twenty-fourth month of the 2-year period. If
no option or less than 50% of the options are exercised during the first to sixth month,

these unexercised options can be carried forward to the thirteenth to twenty-fourth month.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than
the higher of the nominal value of the Company’s share or 80% of the average closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant.

The following table shows movements in the Company’s share options during the year
ended 31st December, 2001 and 2002:

R=%%-% R=-%%-F% R=%%=%

-A-H REA +ZRA=t-H REA +ZA=t-H

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding

at during at during at

1/1/2001 the year 31/12/2001 the year 31/12/2002

Directors 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 40,000,000 -
Employees 27,000,000 6,000,000 21,000,000 21,000,000 -
67,000,000 6,000,000 61,000,000 61,000,000 -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share Option Scheme — The Company (continued)

Details of the share options are as follows:

TEME
Exercisable period BRTEE
EHE B BFELEE =] z Exercise price
Date of grant Vesting period From To per share
il
HK$
“EEEFE=F—H “EEFZHE=A—HZE “EEFEFENA -H “FEFHNA=Z+—H 0.51

1st March, 2000

—EEHENA=Z+—H
1st March, 2000

1st September, 2000 31st August, 2002

to 31st August, 2002

BRE— LBKE

4% B WK IR — UL A =+ =
H T B A% 2 8 W R ME S & (185 BBk IR
R D) > B OK e 2 3 e n AR b
KU w5 F g K 1) B K TR R AT AT B
N R Z AT AT SR B A R RE DL RR
B b K VR 2 IR o AR B A% AR B 2
HE N R B 2 de O BB R A R A
KU R E BT AR 10% - B LW K E R
HER FE-FENA+—HEILEAR
PR LK R R B 2 6K b TR HE
BAANCHRZFEF—EAH+ A H BT ?
CERFAEZA=ZtT-HMRAMEZ 2
#128,500,0001 i B HE A BRIk E H 45 2%
B

S R ST E (B LK RN E ) B AR
BR_FF_FERH =R EBZR
e R AS KR 2 IR R A PR AN R
RIEZ FEEM B RS HEERMEA L
Wk 7K VA 25 2 Wk & > o 2 B 3 w1 R T
W K U B H R I 2 b T K TR R
B T R 25 T 5% 7 < B L W K R R
Bl —F—"FRH .+ HEW-

Share Option Scheme — SAC

Pursuant to the old share option scheme (the “Old SAC Scheme”) which
was adopted by SAC on 22nd April, 1994, the board of directors of SAC
may grant to any director or employee of SAC or any of its subsidiaries
options to subscribe for shares in SAC, in accordance with the terms of the
Old SAC Scheme. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
SAC from time to time. The Old SAC Scheme was terminated on 21st
August, 2001. All of the 28,500,000 share options outstanding at 31st March,
2001 lapsed on 15th May, 2001 following the resignation of the option
holders on the same date in accordance with the terms of the Old SAC

Scheme.

A new share option scheme (the “New SAC Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders of SAC pursuant to a resolution passed on 23rd May, 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing the participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in SAC and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of SAC and its shares for the benefit of SAC
and its shareholders as a whole. The New SAC Scheme will expire on 22nd
May, 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share Option Scheme — SAC (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New SAC Scheme and any other scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of SAC in issue at the date of shareholders’
approval of the new SAC Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or if such
10% limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal
of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New SAC Scheme and any other share
option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of SAC
in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of SAC then in issue, without prior approval from the
shareholders of SAC. Each grant of options to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-executive
directors. Options granted to any substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive director in excess of 0.1% of the share capital of SAC or with
a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date of

grant must be approved in advance by the shareholders of SAC.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date of grant,
upon payment of HK$10 per option. Any option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New SAC Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the New SAC Scheme to be notified by the board of
directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of SAC, and will not be less
than the higher of the closing price of the shares of SAC on the date of
grant, and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for

the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, no options were granted under

the New SAC Scheme.
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26. RESERVES

THE GROUP

At Ist January, 2001

Surplus (deficit) on revaluation

Released as a result of
liquidation of a jointly
controlled entity

Translation of financial
statements of overseas
operations

Profit for the year

Transfer to other reserves

At 31st December, 2001
and 1st January, 2002

Surplus (deficit) on revaluation

Realised on disposal of
investment properties

Realised on disposal of
jointly controlled entities

Translation of financial
statements of overseas
operations

Profit for the year

Transfer from other reserves

At 31st December, 2002

Attributable to:
Company and subsidiaries
Associates
Jointly controlled entities

At 31st December, 2002

Company and subsidiaries
Associates
Jointly controlled entities

At 31st December, 2001

THE COMPANY
At Ist January, 2001
Profit for the year

At 31st December, 2001
and 1st January, 2002
Profit for the year

At 31st December, 2002

b7 — B —
BHEr_=5_

Ft=A=t+—BLFE
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RENF
RE Kk EX EftRE
EfRE REEE BXiR FEEHE  Investment
Investment Share Special  Exchange property HtbfifE ZiHEH
revaluation premium capital equalisation  revaluation Other  Accumulated ay
reserve account reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
BETR EHTT BEFR kT BETR BETR BWT BWT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(17,986) 198,839 1,544,171 (51,686) 64,270 - 463,063 2,200,671
(425) - - - 67,951 - - 67,526
- - - 5,999 - - - 5,999
- - - 1,103 - - - 1,103
- - - - - - 102,782 102,782
= = = = = 4,402 (4.402) =
(18,411) 198,839 1,544,171 (44,584) 132,221 4402 561,443 2,378,081
(4,589) - - - 33,643 - - 29,054
= S S S (59) S = (39)
- - - 1,751 - - - 1,751
- - - 14,932 - - - 14,932
- - - - - - 97,198 97,198
_ - - - - (4.402) 4,402 -
(23,000) 198,839 1,544,171 (27,901) 165,805 - 663,043 2,520,957
(23,000) 198,839 1,544,171 (27,901) 18,708 - 520,056 2,230,873
- - - - 47,421 - 28,218 75,639
- - - - 99,676 - 114,769 214,445
(23,000) 198,839 1,544,171 (27,901) 165,805 - 663,043 2,520,957
(18,411) 198,839 1,544,171 (44,584) 1,252 - 462,333 2,143,600
- - - - 40,492 - 28,140 68,032
- - - - 90,477 4402 70,970 165,349
(18,411) 198,839 1,544,171 (44,584) 132,221 4,402 561,443 2,378,081
- 198,839 1,544,171 - - - 156,309 1,899,319
- - - - - - 15,924 15,924
- 198,839 1,544,171 - - - 172,233 1,915,243
- - - - - - 32,658 32,658
- 198,839 1,544,171 - - - 204,891 1,947,901
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

26. RESERVES (continued)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31st
December, 2002 represent the accumulated profits of HK$204,891,000 (2001:
HKS$172,233,000). When sanctioning a reduction in nominal value of the
Company’s shares in 1998, the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region stipulated that the credit arising on the reduction be
transferred to a special capital reserve, and that reserve was not to be regarded
as distributable until all of the liabilities of the Company as at the date of
the order, 14th July 1998, were settled. At 31st December, 2002, liabilities
of the Company included HK$38,129,000, (2001: HK$44,292,000) in respect
of liabilities in existence at 14th July, 1998. Accordingly, the special capital
reserve was not distributable at 31st December, 2002 and 2001.

Other reserves represent a reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund.
The reserve fund is to be used to expand the enterprise’s working capital.
When the enterprise suffers losses, the reserve fund may be used to make up
unrecovered losses under special circumstances. The enterprise expansion
fund is to be used for business expansion and, if approved, can also be used
to increase capital. During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the reserve

fund was transferred to accumulated profits.

The remittance outside of the PRC of accumulated profits of the subsidiaries
and joint ventures established in the PRC is subject to approval of the local
authorities and the availability of foreign currencies generated and retained

by these companies.
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Bank overdrafts

Bank loans

Convertible loan notes
(Note a)
Promissory notes (Note b)
Obligations under finance lease
Advances from minority
shareholders (Note c¢)
Other loans

Secured

Unsecured

The maturity of the above loans
and overdrafts is as follows:

On demand or within one year

More than one year, but not
exceeding two years

More than two years, but not
exceeding five years

Less: Amounts due within
one year shown under

current liabilities
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rEH EAF
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
BEFT T BEFT EWTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,354 28,375 7,138 28,375
1,586,079 1,064,373 18,000 10,000
1,593,433 1,092,748 25,138 38,375
- 38,015 - 38,015

304,463 257,187 264,463 217,187
31 37 - -
104,859 96,570 - -
86,904 20,486 20,000 20,000
2,089,690 1,505,043 309,601 313,577
491,474 453,111 4,736 11,897
1,598,216 1,051,932 304,865 301,680
2,089,690 1,505,043 309,601 313,577
1,766,316 1,077,803 309,601 168,577
180,762 221,600 - 145,000
142,612 205,640 - =
2,089,690 1,505,043 309,601 313,577
(1,766,316) (1,077,803) (309,601) (168,577)
323,374 427,240 - 145,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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BE _ZTZZ S+ _A=+—HIFE

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

The convertible loan notes with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$227,000,000 carry interest at 4% per annum payable quarterly in arrears
with the first interest payment due on 31st August, 1998 and the last interest
payment due on 1st June, 2001. Each loan note entitles the holder to convert
the loan note into new shares of the Company at a conversion price, subject to
adjustment, of HK$1.00 per share during the period from Ist June, 1998 to 1st
June, 2001. At any time on or before the maturity date, the Company is entitled
to redeem the loan notes or part of the loan notes at the principal amount and a
sum equal to the prime rate plus 2% of such amount calculated on a yearly
compounded basis from Ist June, 1998 to the date of the relevant redemption
(after deducting the interest actually paid by the Company over that period). As
a result of the rights issue of shares in 2000, the conversion price was adjusted
to HK$0.74 per share.

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, the noteholder agreed to extend
the maturity date of the remaining principal of the notes of HK$38,015,000 to
2nd June, 2002.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the remaining outstanding principal
of the notes of HK$38,015,000 together with interest accrued was replaced by
the issue of a promissory note of HK$40,419,000 to the loan noteholder.

Promissory notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$72,187,000, which
were issued by the Company during the year ended 31st December, 2000, carry
interest at 4.75% per annum and became due for repayment on 27th December,
2002.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the outstanding principal of the
notes of HK$72,187,000 together with interest accrued was replaced by the
issue of the new promissory notes of HK$79,044,000, which carries interest at
4.75% per annum and is repayable on 27th December, 2003, to the noteholder.

A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$145,000,000, which was
issued by the Company during the year ended 31st December, 2000, carries
interest at 7% per annum and is repayable on 30th December, 2003.

A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$40,000,000, which was issued
by the Group during the year ended 31st December, 2001, carries interest at 7%
per annum and is repayable on 20th December, 2004.

A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$40,419,000 which was issued
by the Company during the year ended 31st December, 2002 for the replacement
of the convertible loan notes described in note (a), carries interest at 7% per
annum and is repayable on 2nd June, 2003.

The advances from minority shareholders of subsidiaries are unsecured and are
not repayable within twelve months from the balance sheet date and carry
interest at 7.2% (2001: 11.9%) per annum.
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28. INTEREST-FREE BORROWINGS

rEE AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

BETT EWTIT BT BETT
HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$’000

Advances from minority

shareholders (Note) 54,076 29,411 - -
Amounts due to jointly
controlled entities (Note) 36,299 42,604 4,333 4,333
Amount due to an associate
(Note) 9,645 - - -
Other loans - 16,280 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries
(Note) - - 226,007 129,688
100,020 88,295 230,340 134,021
Secured - 6,000 - -
Unsecured 100,020 82,295 230,340 134,021
100,020 88,295 230,340 134,021

The maturity of above loans is as follows:

On demand or within one year 6,671 16,280 -
After one year 93,349 72,015 230,340 134,021
100,020 88,295 230,340 134,021

Less: Amounts due within
one year shown under
current liabilities (6,671) (16,280) - -

93,349 72,015 230,340 134,021

Note:
The advances from minority shareholders of subsidiaries, amounts due to jointly controlled entities,

amount due to an associate and amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured and are not repayable

within twelve months from the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

29. DEFERRED TAXATION

Movements during the year were as follows:

Balance at 1st January

Exchange adjustments

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries

Arising on consolidation of a former jointly controlled entity
Arising on revaluation of investment properties

Charge to income statement (Note 11)

Balance at 31st December
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rEE
THE GROUP
2002 2001
BETF T Vi A
HKS$’000 HK$’000
338,219 247,769
251 -
- 81,000
1,120 -
6,167 8,928
10,511 522
356,268 338,219
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the deferred tax liabilities accounted

for in the financial statements are as follows:

Taxation effect attributable to excess of depreciation
allowance claimed for tax purposes over

depreciation charged in the financial statements

Taxation effect of adjustments to the financial
statements of subsidiaries in the PRC to
conform with the Group’s

accounting policies
PRC income tax and land appreciation tax
attributable to surplus on revaluation

of investment properties

PRC income tax and land appreciation tax

attributable to the Group’s properties acquired
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THE GROUP
2002 2001
BT T 5 W T or
HEK$°000 HK$’000
2,207 -
30,426 21,468
13,996 8,927
309,639 307,824
356,268 338,219
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the unprovided deferred tax assets

(liabilities) are as follows:

rEHE ZNYN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

BEFRT B TL EBETT #ETL
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$ 000

Tax effect of timing differences

because of:
Tax losses unutilised 24,696 32,504 1,067 1,067
Excess of tax allowances over
depreciation (545) (553) (536) (536)

24,151 31,951 531 531

The amount of unprovided deferred tax credit (charge) for the year is as follows:

rEME AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001

BEFRT W TL BMTFT  BETI
HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$ 000

Tax effect of timing differences
because of:
Tax losses arising 1,474 1,898 - -
Excess of depreciation over
tax allowances 8 2 - -
Subsidiaries deconsolidated
and disposed of (9,282) - - —
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 25,013 - =

(7,800) 26,913 - -

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial statements in respect of tax
losses available to offset future profits as it is not certain that the tax losses will be utilised

in the foreseeable future.
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30. CONSOLIDATION OF A FORMER JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

As described in note 18, Shanghai SAC became a subsidiary of the Group on 14th March,

2002.

The effect of consolidation of the assets and liabilities of Shanghai SAC is summarised as

follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Properties held for sale

Other inventories

Trade and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Tax liabilities

Bank loans

Amount due to the Group

Amount due to a minority shareholder

Deferred taxation

Less: Amount attributable to minority interests

Net assets acquired

Goodwill on acquisition

Amount attributable to the Group and
previously classified as interest in

a jointly controlled entity

Net cash inflow arising from consolidation of Shanghai SAC

Bank balances and cash consolidated

122

it W T T
HK$’000

215,289
7,872
22,640

165,156

8,863
(39,939)
(1,197)
(126,937)
(21,976)
(11,766)
(1,120)

216,885
(86,754)

130,131
8,450

138,581

8,863
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

31. BEWE AR 31. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES

ATERTAET A= —HIEEER During the year ended 31st December, 2002,

(F) 7 42 | DA B 42 7,321,000% 7 34 1§ 5 (a) The Group acquired an additional 60% interest in Changzhou Tian An
MR %5 8 AR A (T3 MR Landmark Co., Ltd. (“CZTA”) (formerly known as Changzhou
1) (JR 4% 8 B RS s A BR A A International Commercial Plaza Co., Ltd.) for a cash consideration of
Z 60%HE 4 » 18 W A% N K 2N AR HK$7,321,000 after which CZTA became a wholly owned subsidiary
EE g <gr ) i) PANID of the Group.

(¢.) 7% 45 [ Ji % Sino Dynamic Limited (b) The Group acquired a 100% interest in Sino Dynamic Limited which is
100% 1 4t > wF 2 7 B 5E33(H) - described in note 33(a).

WoEE—ET A= —HIEEER During the year ended 31st December, 2001,

() A K e 2 B %5 A AR v > AR 4R (c) As part of the financial restructuring of SAC, the Group acquired 68.54%
5] Wi I B K U B B AT I AR 68.54% of the issued share capital of SAC for a consideration which was
HE 2 > 3l DA S 4 [ it ATI-Shanghai Inc satisfied by the disposal of the Group’s entire 83.3% interest in AII-
83.3%ME % ¢ i It TH i B - AILL- Shanghai Inc, which holds 60% interest in Shanghai SAC, to SAC. In
Shanghai Inc F¢4 b i 7K I 60% 2 H#E addition, the Group acquired an additional 26.33% interest in SAC by
% o 99 A1 > A 45 B F DA B 42 96,000,000 subscribing for new shares of SAC for a cash consideration of
T AR I b K R R AT 2B I 4 HK$96,000,000. The acquisition was completed on 15th May, 2001.

WK P8 26.33% 2 HE 25 o B 45 I I E
MRoEE—FERA+HH %R

R B KR IR AR B DB Upon acquisition of SAC, the Group’s stated intention was to reduce
T A0 0 R B OK T 2 R AR its interest in SAC to 75% through a disposal of interest in SAC or the
B b W K R B AT T IR T A = DL issue by SAC of new shares to third parties. Up to 31st December,
AR SE Y B KR 2 RERR B T5% © 2001, the Group disposed of a 40.1% interest (including the disposal of
HEFZ -+ _HA=+—H & 19.74% interest in (d) below) in SAC through piecemeal disposals
EE LR E W& B K which resulted in an aggregate gain of HK$203,016,000 (note 6).

PeH40.19% (LG H3E (T) Frifz
E19.74% 0 5) 2 R4 M B E S
7 4 8 25 Ak 45£203,016,000% o€ 2 Fl
(B Ee) -
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3. BEMB AT (&)

(T) AR ARAR ([ ])
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A B 2 ] o
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B PR F92% 2 W 5 e N 3 B
B 5 b A A BR A F 65% 2 HE i o

31.

(d)

(e)

()

PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Group acquired a 90% interest in World Market Limited (“WML”)
for a consideration which was satisfied by the disposal of a 19.74%
interest in SAC, an interest bearing promissory note of HK$40 million
and cash of HK$85 million. WML has the right to acquire certain land

use rights for development purposes in the PRC.

The Group acquired an additional 50% interest in Sunhaitung Co., Ltd.
(“SHT”) for a cash consideration of HK$18 million after which SHT

became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

The Group acquired a 92% interest in - ¥ 5L e M 11> 35 %8 J& A7 fR A A
and a 65% interest in Guangzhou Panyu Liren Real Estate Limited for
a cash consideration of HK$18,692,000 and nominal consideration

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

31. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2002 2001
BT T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
Property, plant and equipment 618 3,380
Properties for development 38,958 417,764
Interest in a jointly controlled entity
Share of net assets - 126,629
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity - 18,102
Investments in securities - 3,817
Trade and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 3,984 30,874
Properties under development 192,687 42,198
Properties held for sale - 8,910
Other inventories - 102
Bank balances and cash 641 51,167
Trade and other payables (89,160) (85,702)
Forward sales deposits (16,290) (15,030)
Tax liabilities - (1,863)
Bank loans (67,442) (9,346)
Amount due to the Group (15,645) (6,542)
Amount due to a minority shareholder - (7,319)
Minority interests = (24,284)
Deferred taxation - (81,000)
48,351 471,857
Less: Interest acquired in previous years as
interest in a jointly controlled entity
Share of net assets (2,072) (21,849)
Goodwill on acquisition,
less amortisation - (1,306)
Amount attributable to minority interests - (6,438)
46,279 442,264
Goodwill on acquisition - 95,410
46,279 537,674
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31. BEMB LT (&)

xfAER

T — 3 [ 42 1 2\ 2 B 4R
JBE A 5

— Ft [ 2 4l 2 7 KK
Bl E

G 3537

LIRS

H A5 — B 2 =) 4 HE 45 P A5
5 5 o FE A 8 i B K

1 4B KA K
RATRAT LB &
DB R A

LR B O R 2 B MR
SERIE H U R AT

WEA 2 i AT 45 7 KB &
Bl HE

B B o W] 2 B K Bl
S (ELTEF U AR

BT AR T 2 I
JB A ) By A A AR L AR
54,949,000% 76 (—FF —
4 160,129,000 7T) K K82
Tt F112,116,000% 76 (&%
—4F:10,058,000% JC) °

31. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

SATISFIED BY
Interest in a jointly controlled entity
Share of net assets
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity
Cash consideration
Properties for development
Promissory notes
Proceeds from disposal of certain interest in a subsidiary
Trade and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Bank balances and cash

Minority interests

2002 2001
BT T W F T
HK$’000 HKS$°000
- 122,785

- 18,102

7,321 217,396
38,958 -

- 40,000

- 158,400

- 4,812

- 463
- (24,284)

46,279 537,674

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the purchase of

subsidiaries:

Bank balances and cash acquired, net

Cash consideration

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the purchase of subsidiaries

2002 2001

B F T W Fon
HK$’000 HK$°000
641 50,704
(7,321) (217,396)
(6,680) (166,692)

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st December, 2002 contributed
HK$54,949,000 (2001: HK$60,129,000) to the Group’s turnover and HK$2,116,000 (2001:

HK$10,058,000) to the Group’s profit from operations.
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(F) 7% 45 [ Ji % Sino Dynamic Limited
100% ## 25 > 3iF DA H B j Tian Liang
Limited 4 # 86 % fiE #it 3 1 F AE -
Sino Dynamic Limited /i [ A % A Uk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the Group disposed of certain

subsidiaries which are described in note 33(a).

33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2002,

(a) The Group acquired a 100% interest in Sino Dynamic Limited which
has the right to acquire certain land use rights for development purposes
in the PRC for a consideration which was satisfied by the disposal of
the Group’s entire 86% interest in Tian Liang Limited which, through
a wholly owned subsidiary, has an interest in certain vacant land sites

in the PRC.

(b) A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$40,419,000 was
issued by the Company to repay the principal and interest on the

outstanding convertible loan notes, which is described in note 27.

(c) As described in note 27(b), promissory notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$79,044,000 were issued by the Company to repay the
principal and interest on the outstanding promissory notes of
HK$72,187,000.

(d) The Group received properties held for sale of HK$3,280,000 (2001:

nil) in settlement of trade receivables in lieu of cash settlement.

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, the Group entered into certain

major non-cash transactions which are described in note 31(c) and (d).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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34. HEZRH

KEFHHAEL
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34. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$130,924,000 (2001: HK$92,250,000) were rented out under operating

leases. Certain investment property is leased out for a period of 20 years from the date of

commencement of operation of a lessee that occupies the properties, with a renewal option

at the end of the lease. The rentals are calculated at a certain percentage of the turnover

(net of value added tax) of the lessee, with a minimum annual rental of HK$9,434,000.

Other investment properties were leased out for periods ranging from 1 to 2 years and the

majority of the leases did not have any renewal options given to the lessees. The future

minimum lease payments receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases

is as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

Total
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2002 2001
BT T Mo
HEK$°000 HKS$’000
12,910 5,709
38,556 1,636
141,509 -
192,975 7,345
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

34. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The Group as lessee
At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had outstanding commitments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

AEE DR

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001
EBETFT EWTT EBE¥TFT EWT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Operating leases expiring:
— within one year 17,016 15,803 928 2,397
— in the second to

fifth years inclusive 34,466 23,659 1,105 2,711
— over five years 252,868 251,838 - -
304,350 291,300 2,033 5,108

In June 2001, the Group entered into an arrangement with a PRC third party to lease its
production facilities for manufacture of cement with a term of twenty years. Under a
supplemental agreement with the PRC third party, the Group has an option to terminate the
said lease in June 2003 and each of two years after June 2003. The Group has no current
intention to terminate the lease. The operating lease commitment included above in respect
of this lease represents rental payments up to the end of the first two-year period where
such option to terminate the lease may be exercised by the Group. From the second year to
the fifth year inclusive, the rental will be escalated by a fixed amount of approximately
HK$470,000 per annum. Starting from the sixth year onwards, the rental is fixed at the

same term as that of the fifth year.
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34. HEZRH (&)
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35. EAREGH

CEAKH ZEAR
ST A
Hi B A 2
o i i i HE
BT E A
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BT — DB
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34. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Also, the Group entered into agreements with PRC parties to lease certain vacant land
sites with a term of seventy years for future property development. Until the Group enters
into agreements for the acquisition of the land use right of these sites, the Group is liable
for the payment of rent, which is calculated based on the site area not yet acquired. The
rental is fixed for the first three years and will be increased by 5% for each of the
following three-year periods. The operating lease commitments for these land sites are
calculated by reference to the planned development timeframe and are included in the

above analysis.

Other operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its
office properties. Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from one to eight years at fixed

rentals.

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

rEE AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001
BEFT HEWTL BEFT #EWHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Capital expenditure in respect of
contracted commitments for:
acquisition of land use
rights in the PRC 1,191,981 1,428,144 - -
loans to associates 5,383 5,390 - -
loans to a third party - 1,706 - -
loans to a minority
shareholder - 5,196 - -

In addition to the above, the Group’s attributable share of the contracted commitments in
respect of the acquisition of land use rights in the PRC of a jointly controlled entity is
HK$14,383,000 (2001: HK$14,249,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees given to banks in respect
of banking facilities utilised by:
— subsidiaries
— jointly controlled entities
Guarantees given to banks in respect
of mortgage loans granted
to property purchasers
Guarantee given to banks in respect
of banking facilities granted
to third parties
Guarantee given to a bank in respect
a banking facility granted to a
vendor of land use rights to a
property development subsidiary
Commercial bills discounted
with recourse
Guarantee in respect of a promissory

note issued by a subsidiary

AEH ADT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001
BEFTT B IEF T BEFTT B F T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
- - 530,094 204,605
155,981 152,783 21,450 21,450
244,906 308,548 18,104 25,289
89,150 46,262 - -
11,132 28,037 - -
35,577 - - -
- - 40,000 40,000

During the year, the National Tax Bureau in the PRC issued a notice to all local tax

bureaux requiring them to impose land appreciation tax on property developers. In the

opinion of the directors, after consulting the tax consultants and the tax bureaux of certain

relevant cities, land appreciation tax will not be made in respect of properties already

completed in those cities up to and including 2002. Accordingly, no provisions for land

appreciation tax have been made in the financial statements. The Company has not, however,

been able to secure written confirmation of those individual city policies, and the directors

consider that there is a small possibility that land appreciation tax might be levied. Should

such levies take place, then land appreciation tax of a subsidiary attributable to the Group

amounts to HK$24,680,000 and share of land appreciation tax of a jointly controlled entity
attributable to the Group amounts to HK$41,779,000.
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered
a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st

December, 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group’s
contribution are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant income,
with the mandatory cap of HK$20,000, and the Group will make 5% top-up

contribution if an employee’s monthly basic salary exceeds HK$20,000.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the employees
at rates ranging from 0% to 5% and from the Group at rates ranging from
5% to 10% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. During
the year, the amount of forfeited contributions used to set off contributions
was HK$17,000 (2001: HK$180,000). At the balance sheet date, no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme, are

available to reduce the contributions payable in future years.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme

is to make the specified contributions.

During the year, the Group made contributions to the retirement benefits
schemes of HK$5,497,000 (2001: HK$5,058,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

During the year ended 31st December, 2002,

(a)

(b)

A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$40,419,000, carrying interest at
7% per annum and repayable on 2nd June 2003, was issued by the Company to Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. This
promissory note was to repay the principal and interest on the outstanding convertible

loan notes due to SHK, as described in note 27.

Promissory notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK72,187,000 and issued to
a subsidiary of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL”), which is a holding company
of SHK and has a common director with the Company, was due for repayment on
27th December, 2002. These promissory notes together with interest accrued were
replaced by the issue of the new promissory notes of HK$79,044,000, as described in
note 27.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

38. EHAEATIHNRER 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)
R ()
() 2= 5 [ 8L A B2 A & (c) The Group had other material transactions and balances with related parties as follow:
Z oAt B K 32 5 T 45
BRI
2002 2001
BETFTT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
() Mk (i) SHK
— I i A T 4 B K — Outstanding convertible loan notes payable,
SR R M EE27 () as detailed in note 27(a) - 38,015
— T A K A S — Interest on convertible loan notes 633 1,521
— I R AT O — Outstanding promissory notes, as
R EE27 (2) detailed in note 27(b) 185,419 145,000
— R A — Interest on promissory notes 11,801 10,205
— O mEEMK — Rent, property management and air-conditioning
72 i1 fees paid 1,253 734
— A RBE A — Insurance paid 1,149 749
— JRE A 4 R — Amounts payable 29,994 19,286
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

38. EHAEATIHNRER 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)
R ()
2002 2001
BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
(i) FridEz EFERK (ii) A controlling shareholder of SHK (and which has
(/N = R v A =) a common director with the Company)
—ENHE WEEEK - Rent, property management and air-conditioning
%2 i 2 H fees paid 797 999
— O A — 3 [ 4 o A — Rent, property management and
T 4~ Wy 3 8 1 I 22 A 4 air-conditioning fees
paid to a jointly controlled entity 709 2,276
—WEE I — Purchase of a property = 4,673
— i R AT 2 - Outstanding promissory notes payable,
s LI RE27 (2) as detailed in note 27(b) 79,044 72,187
—WZERE (Mid27(2)) — Interest on promissory notes (note 27(b)) 3,429 3,429
— AT 4 8 — Amounts payable 6,095 9,462
(i) AELEZHE AR K (iii) Associates and jointly controlled entities
e [7] 2 3 /8 of the Group
—FLE A — Interest income 1,698 4,960
—HEREY R — Sales of construction materials 4,925 9,939
— W E EEY R — Purchase of construction materials 1,571 -
— S P A A R AT 4T — Guarantees provided by jointly controlled
REMMZRITEE entities given to banks for banking facilities
fE R granted to the Group 112,264 143,925
— LR A T A T ROE — Pledge of investment properties by a jointly
WEGRRIT - EARTAEE controlled entity to banks for banking facilities
Z 84715 $£75,500,0005 76 amounting to HK$75.5 million
(= &% —4F 151,400,000 (2001: HK$51.4 million)
ot Z R granted to the Group 113,787 92,494
—AEEME TREYES — Pledge of investment properties of the Group
SRAT AR By 4 T — L R HE ) to a bank for a banking facility granted to
0 FRAT R B 2 AR a jointly controlled entity 59,000 62,000
— B 5 T oAb 1 Wi AR K — Trade and other receivables = 2,085
— B 5 B HL A AT R K — Trade and other payables = 4,790
(v) > EBHR (iv) Minority shareholders
—KRAEEXEHEER — Rental expenses for cement production facilities 3,647 -

32 5 ¥ A B 45 5 E 2 ¢ The above transactions have been entered into on terms agreed by the parties concerned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBAAFHE

B 73 Sh i W A > B A 2

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries which are incorporated and are operating principally

J&§ 2N ) 34 7 A o A R in Hong Kong except where otherwise indicated are as follows:
o A
FEMEANE
QAR AFE BT
ZERREEE"
R E ARz Bl
Proportion
of nominal
ERTHE value of issued
L@ A, ordinary share capital/
= it & A< registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
MEBATEZRE ordinary share capital/ =3 R TEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %

All-cement Limited (iii) US$1 - 100 $EHEK

Investment holding
All-Shanghai Inc. (iii) US$15,376,500 = 83.33 HEHEMRK

Investment holding
Allied Golf Course Development US$1,000 - 100 FEEERK

(Yantai) Limited (iv) Investment holding
Allied Resort (Hangzhou) Company US$1 = 100 HEFER
Limited (iii) Investment holding

18 6 3% & A BR A ® (1) HK$2 . 100 YWEHEHF
Anhip Investments Limited (i) Property trading
AP Pearl Limited (iii) US$1 - 100 $EHE K

Investment holding
Asia Coast Investments Limited (iii) US$1 = 100 #&E M
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(%)
ARBREFEERT
EERBRAEE
=t & A<z b )
Proportion
of nominal
EERITHE value of issued
LERM A, ordinary share capital/
=M E A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
RN ordinary share capital/ BiE BiE FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %
Best Advantage Limited (iii) US$1 = 100 #HEHEK
Investment holding
Best Perspective Limited (iii) US$1 = 100 YEEE
Property trading

RAF KL WE AR A (v) RMBS50,000,000 - 100 W& ¥R
Changchun Tian An Real Estate Property development

Development Co., Ltd. (v)
N K 2 I T g A R W (i) US$2,650,000 - 90 MR
Changzhou Tian An City Development Property development

Co., Ltd. (ii)
WM % W) 3 5 R AT PR W (i) US$100,000 - 95 WEEH
Changzhou Ankai Property Property management

Development Co., Ltd. (ii)
N R % S B A RA US$8,000,000 - 100 Wy ERBE-

(542 N R B 3 A BR A WD) (v) 0 )i 8

Changzhou Tian An Landmark Co., Ltd.

(formerly as Changzhou International
Commercial Plaza Co., Ltd.) (v)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBAAFHE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(&)
ARBREFEERT
EERBRAEE
=t & A<z b 5l
Proportion
of nominal
EERITHE value of issued
L@ A, ordinary share capital/
=M E A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
MEARRR ordinary share capital/ =3 R TEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %

3 A T PR A 7 HK$200 100 - BEER
Chinaland Management Limited Investment holding
Commander Ventures Limited (iii) US$1 = 100 HEHEMK

Investment holding
Cornell Property Services Co., Ltd. (iii) US$1 = 100 Wy 248 P R BB 3 B

Property management

and investment holding
BHYEER (Lg) ARAFE W) US$620,000 - 100 ¥y B
Cornell Properties Services (Shanghai) Property management
Co., Ltd. (v)

B % B RA R F ) HK$2 - 100 ¥R
Country Wise Development Limited (i) Property development
Cross-Asia Properties Limited (iii) US$1 = 100 % & # 8

Investment holding
R 5 b5 HbEE BH R A IR 4 R (i) US$6,800,000 - 60 WIEBERE

Dalian Allied Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FEMBAAFHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(%)
ARBFFE#T
EERBRAEES
& Az Bl
Proportion
of nominal
ERITHR value of issued
LW A, ordinary share capital/
= it & A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
MEAR R ordinary share capital/ B BiE FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %
K )W) 358 B R D (i) US$140,000 = 95 WEEH

Dalian Cornell Property Services
Co., Ltd. (ii)

R R 22 B K R A BR A #] (v)
Dalian Tian An Tower Co., Ltd. (v)

US$10,000,000

Foo Chow Holdings Limited (iii) US$1
A R A HK$2
Giant Chance Limited

Grand Rise Investments Limited (iii) US$1

&N T T B AT ML E A PR A (i)

Guangzhou Panyu Liren Real

RMB42,849,265

Estate Limited (ii)

& T R B B M E B B A BR A F (i)
Guangzhou Tian Sui Realty

US$12,000,000

Development Co., Ltd. (ii)
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Property development

- 100

BRI

Investment holding

- 100

BB

Investment holding

- 100

BRI

Investment holding

- 100
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Property development

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBLAFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(&)

MEAREE

Name of subsidiary

EBITHE
EERERE

= it & A<

Paid up issued
ordinary share capital/

registered capital

ARBFRFEE#RT
EERBRAEES
=t & Az b Bl
Proportion
of nominal

value of issued

ordinary share capital/

registered capital
held by the Company
=3 fE
Directly Indirectly

TEER

Principal activities

A i 4 A R A F
Hong Kong East World

Investments Limited

8] J7 22 A1 L A FR 2 F (i)
Interform Building Material Supplies
Limited (iii)

Interform Construction

Supplies Limited (iii)

Interform Strategic Holdings Limited (iii)

LT 2K 22 5 b e B 3% A A R ] (i)

Jianmen City Tian An Property
Development Co., Ltd. (ii)

FEIREE (i) AIRA A
Jeefo Holdings (HK) Limited

1E 53 R A PR 2~ A

Join View Development Limited

HK$1,000,000

US$100

US$2

US$2

RMB20,000,000

HK$11,900,002

HK$2
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% %

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

BB

Investment holding

HE &M

Trading of building materials

BOEBER R EHEM
Investment holding
and trading of building

materials

BRI

Investment holding

UE S

Property development

B B

Investment holding

K
Money lending
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBAAFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(%)

ERTHRE

EERRAE

A E A
Paid up issued

ARBREFERT
EERBRAEES
M E Az 5
Proportion
of nominal

value of issued

ordinary share capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

CE =N ordinary share capital/ BHiE BiE FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %

Kylie Nominees Limited HKS$2 = 100 £2 HEAC AR B

Provision of nominee

services
P R 2 A R A (i) US$1,000,000 - 95 g
Nanjing Tian An Commercial Property letting
Plaza Co., Ltd. (ii)

F R #RE A BR 2 A (i) US$7,500,000 - 60 WyEBERE
Nanjing Tiandu Industry Co., Ltd. (ii) Property development
Oasis Star Limited (iii) US$1 - 100 & EHER

Investment holding
R i B & A R R HK$100 - 85 EEM
Regal Asset Investment Limited Investment holding
SAC Engineering Limited (iii) US$50,000 - 100 4R EHEM

Investment holding
L IRARA A HK$100 - 100 HEEM
SAC Engineering Company Limited Trading of building materials
SAC Enterprises Limited HK$1,000 = 100 4 45 18 2\ &) $2 4t 45 21 IR 75

141

Provision of management
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBAAFHE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(%)
ARBREFEERT
EERBRAEE
=t & A<z b 5l
Proportion
of nominal
EERITHE value of issued
L@ A, ordinary share capital/
=M E A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
RN ordinary share capital/ BHiE BiE FEXK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %
b Bk S AT AR A HK$100 = 100 7% 4R 1 2> W) 42 3t B 55 IR 5
SAC Finance Company Limited Provision of financing
services to group
companies
L SR B K 8 8% R A BR 2 A (v) US$1,000,000 - 100 R K U8 J oy o 2o
Shandong Shanghai Allied Manufacture of cement and
Cement Co., Ltd (v) distribution of clinker
b I A K Ve A R F () US$24,000,000 - 60 R R IK U8 K43 B Rt
Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd. (ii) Manufacture of cement and
distribution of clinker
b W S K R B A R A D (vii) HK$182,348,761 - 54.77 BEEK
Shanghai Allied Cement Limited (vii) Investment holding
bl RZF O KEARAF US$28,000,000 - 98 MR
(JR 2 &4k 5 #h 2 A BRA A (i) Property development
Shanghai Tian An Centre Building
Co., Ltd. (formerly as Shanghai Jee
Fo Estate Co., Ltd.) (ii)
Ei Rl AR 4R A R R (v) US$15,000,000 = 100 Y& 8%

Shanghai Sheshan Country Club
Company Limited (v)

142

Property development




XEHPEREERAT —ZT-_FFH

39. FEMBAAFHE

B A 3R &5 R MR (4

HE_ZTZT_F+-_A=+—HILFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(%)
ARBREFEERT
EERBRAEE
=t & A<z b )
Proportion
of nominal
EERITHE value of issued
LERM A, ordinary share capital/
=M E A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
RN ordinary share capital/ BiE BiE FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %
b R 22 A I A AT R 2 F (i) RMBS50,000,000 - 99 MKERE
Shanghai Tianan Riverview Co., Ltd. (ii) Property development
b R M A R F (i) RMBS50,000,000 - 80 WEEEIE
Shanghai Tianyang Real Estate Property development
Co., Ltd. (ii)

SR B 5 A PR F () HK$2 - 100 BEEE
Silvermarch Limited (i) Shares dealing
Sino Dynamic Limited (iii) US$10,000 = 100 HREHER

Investment holding
R EHEARAA HK$2 ) 100 BEHEM
Sky South Properties Limited Investment holding
o 1 2 A BR 2 7 (i) US$15,000,000 - 100 W3E e R BB I
Sunhaitung Co., Ltd. (ii) Property development and

investment holding

W (PR ARG HK$2,000,000 100 — Wy EER R LR R R e S

Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited (i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBRARFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(%)
AAT SR
EERBRAEES
R E ARz Bl
Proportion
of nominal
ERTHE value of issued
L@ A, ordinary share capital/
= it & A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
MEAR SR ordinary share capital/ B BiE TEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %
B EE S (PEBE) ARA A HK$2 100 - BERER
Sun Hung Kai Securities (China Investment holding
Investment) Limited

T.A B IR 5 A BR 2 7] HKS$2 = 100 4 {3t Ais F iRk B
T.A. Secretarial Services Limited Provision of secretarial

services
Tanya Nominees Limited HK$2 = 100 AR AR B IR

Provision of nominee

services

Tian An Acceptance (Cayman) Limited (iv) US$10,000 100 - W&
Financing
K% (H%) BHBERARAA HK$2 - 100 HEEMK
Tian An (Baoan) Power Development Investment holding
Company Limited

R (RE) HEAMRAH HKS$2 ) 100 HEHEMK

Tian An (Changchun) Investment

Company Limited
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Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBAAFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(%)

AR FE#RT
ZTERBRAEE
= it & 2z L i
Proportion
of nominal
ERITHE value of issued
EERRA, ordinary share capital/
==& A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company

RN ordinary share capital/ BHiE BiE FEEK

Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %

K% (FM) HEFRAF HK$2 - 100 BE# K

Tian An (Changzhou) Investment Investment holding

Company Limited

K% H BB A R HKS$2 100 - BEEREREE
Tian An China Enterprise Limited K HE

Investment holding,
loan financing and

securities dealing

R B B A R A HKS$2 100 - BEER
Tian An China Hotel and Property Investment holding

Investments Company Limited

R 22 B 7 E A BR A HK$1,000 - 100 B&E
Tian An China Properties Limited Investment holding
Tian An Development (Dalian) Company US$1 - 100 % & # B

Limited (iii) Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBLAFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(&)
ARBREFEERT
EERBRAEE
=t & A<z b 5l
Proportion
of nominal
EERITHE value of issued
L@ A, ordinary share capital/
=M E A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
RN ordinary share capital/ BHiE BiE FEXK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %

K2 (FM) HERRAF HK$10,000 - 65 EEMR
Tian An (Guangzhou) Investment Investment holding

Company Limited
K% () BEEA R R (v) US$10,000,000 100 - WEBRE
Tian An (Guang Zhou) Investments Property development

Co., Ltd. (v)
KL )5 A R A A HKS$2 = 100 17 )5 K88 2 B A 5
Tian An Hotel Management V&S -¢Ldi'e

Company Limited Provision of consultancy

services in hotel operation
and investment holding

K % 1 B AR B AR 4 7 HK$2 100 - HEER
Tian An International Services Limited Investment holding
REHERRA A HK$2 - 100 $BEE M
Tian An Investment Company Limited Investment holding
REBE (£H) ARAFA HK$2 100 - HEER

Tian An Investment (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBRATFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(%)
AAT SR
EERBRAEES
&R Z LA
Proportion
of nominal
ERTHE value of issued
LERM A, ordinary share capital/
= it & A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
Cop = NS - ordinary share capital/ B BiE FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %
Tian An Land (Shanghai) Limited (iii) US$1 = 100 #HELER
Investment holding
REREIFERERARAF G HK$2 - 100 W& ¥R
Tian An Long Hua Development Property development
Company Limited (i)
K% (@) BLEHARA A HKS$2 - 100 HEHEMR
Tian An (Nantong) Investment Company Investment holding
Limited
K4 (BRIL) BIRA WA F HKS$2 100 - WEER
Tian An Pearl River Company Limited Investment holding
K% A (b B A BRA A HK$2 ) 100 HEHEMK
Tian An Real Estate Agency (China) Investment holding
Limited
Tian An Real Estate (Dalian) Company US$1 = 100 HEHER

Limited (iii)
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Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBL AFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(&)

ERITHE
EERRAE
AMER

Paid up issued

ARBREFEERT
EERBRAEE
=t & A<z b 5l
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

RN ordinary share capital/ BHiE BiE FEXK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %
R (Lilg) B E&EARA T (v) US$30,000,000 60 40 MR R EHERK

Tian An (Shanghai) Investments
Co., Ltd. (v)

K2 (T HEHRA R A (v)
Tian An (Shenzhen) Enterprise
Development Ltd. (v)

KA (I LEFERARA A
Tian An (Shenzhen) Industrial

Development Company Limited

K% (H#H) HEARAH
Tian An (Shou Du) Investment

Company Limited

K% (H4%) BHEHRA A
Tian An (Sui An) Investment

Company Limited

KL (Ri) REARAHA
Tian An (Tianjin) Investment

Company Limited

R (RE) HEARAA
Tian An (Wuhan) Investment

Company Limited

HK$150,000,000

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2
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Property development and

investment holding

100 - YR

Property development

- 100 4% & # %

Investment holding

- 100 EHE

Investment holding

- 100 #EFER

Investment holding

- 100 4% & ¥ %

Investment holding

- 100 EHEN

Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBRAFFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(%)
ARBREFEERT
EERBRAEE
=t & A<z b )
Proportion
of nominal
EERITHE value of issued
LERM A, ordinary share capital/
=M E A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company
RN ordinary share capital/ BiE BiE FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %

K% (g BLEAHRAF HK$2 - 100 £ E M
Tian An (Wuxi) Investment Company Investment holding

Limited
Kz (EM) HEREARRAF W) US$1,500,000 - 100 ¥ 36 4% J Je A B
Tian An (Xiamen) Property Property development and

Investments Co., Ltd. (v) management
K% (F%) HEARAF HK$2 - 100 35 & 45 i K A5 B L B
Tian An (Xian) Investment Company Investment holding and

Limited loan financing
K (M) YEEHARAA (v) US$500,000 100 - PERELEM
Tian Cheng (Xiamen) Real Estate Property agency and

Management Co., Ltd. (v) management
B B (B8 ARAF (W) US$16,000,000 - 100 WyEEtR
Value Harvest Real Estate (Shanghai) Property development

Co., Ltd. (v)
#E WA R4 7 HKS$100 - 90 HEEM
World Market Limited Investment holding
BT R A Pe ot E B B A R A FD (i) RMB 10,000,000 - 90 MR

Wuhan Changfu Property
Development Co., Ltd. (ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

39. FEMBL AFE 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(&)

AAT SR
ZERREEE"
= it & A 2 L
Proportion
of nominal
ERITHRE value of issued
LW A, ordinary share capital/
= it & A registered capital
Paid up issued held by the Company

MEAR R ordinary share capital/ B BiE TEEK

Name of subsidiary registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
% %

TE 85 AL 1L 2E A R FD (i) US$5,000,000 = 95 WyEEER

Wuxi Redhill Properties Co., Ltd. (ii) Property development

e 855 K % 5t e B B AR 22 R (i) US$3,000,000 - 95 WIEE

Wuxi Tianan Real Estate Property development

Exploring Co., Ltd. (ii)

e T8 B BR B A R D (i) RMB20,000,000 -~ 60 MR
Xinhui City Jin Fu Property Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (ii)

B 1 7 R BR AR AR 48 5B A BR 2 # (v) US$10,000,000 = 100 ) EE R
Yantai Golf & Country Club Co., Ltd. (v) Property development
Bl REEEARAA i) RMB5,000,000 = 90 YR

Property development

g e P A SE R R A IRA A (vi) RMB20,000,000 - 100 Wy e

Property development

VRN T 28 2 I T 22 4 A R A #) RMB750,000 — (viii) HE#EM
([FEFE |) (“Triwa”) (vi) Trading of building

materials
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39. FEMBLAAFE (&)

() FEAE B AR E AR

(i) 7E o B RE AL 2 Ah B A S
mEEAE

(iii) 7E 5 i B2 4 7E 5 5E M 5L

(iv) 7E B 2 3 55 5k i aar

(v) TE o B E AL A A v A 3
magE e

(vi) 7E o B RE A7 2 FA N A BR 28 /)
mEEAE

(vii) 7E F 5% 2 5L

(viii) A4S 24 m A 28 3 2 GF i A S 48 B A
AEAT 3% 4 M > T % 28 W Rl =44 Ak
PR MR PR A EE A A\
AEHFT S 2 T ek WEZHA
N Tl F 18] A 4 0 m] = AT I At
HRELTFFLWEF M UL
EREENH RGBBRZET R
bt FEEPRAEA L 7 Z B A F
mH A BE R ARAEATTAEA
AEBZEG EELAMR-TEZ
A M AR T o A 4 B R

UEBSIHE D EREGRHEAEERZ
R LEEAERELBLMB AR #HH
TRABINHEAMME AR ZFHESE
BHR R T -

R A A B2 I YA AT A Y JE 2 A R

39.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

B A 3R &5 R MR (4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

HE_ZTZT_F+-_A=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Operating principally in the PRC

Established as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures and operating

principally in the PRC

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands

Established as wholly foreign owned enterprises and operating

principally in the PRC

Established as private limited liability companies and operating

principally in the PRC

(vii) Incorporated in Bermuda

(viii)The Company does not have any beneficial interest in the registered

capital of Triwa as it is owned by three individuals. Pursuant to certain
agreements entered into among Triwa, the owners of Triwa and the
Group, the owners of Triwa agreed to assign the power to appoint and
remove all the members of the board of directors of and to govern the
financial and operating policies of Triwa to the Group. Accordingly,
Triwa is treated as a subsidiary of the Company and its results, assets
and liabilities are consolidated with those of the Group. The registered

capital of Triwa was contributed by the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion

of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of

the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

40. T EHEQNTHE

REFF_HE+ZA=1+—H0 &REHR

S N W A R A B 5 b AL
TE B8 % W) ¥ 7 7 o AT AN A I A
BEQATEHRE

Name of associate

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

At 31st December, 2002, the Group had interests in the following associates,
all of which are incorporated and are operating principally in Hong Kong

except as otherwise indicated:

AEERFERT
ETERBREAEE
AMERZ LA
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group

TEER

Principal activities

LR E AR

Bonson Properties Limited

CBI# & A [R 2 7

CBI Investment Limited

Consco Investment Company Limited

LR BCE A R A

Ensen Investment Limited

& RA R F ()

Firstco Development Limited (i)

HRBEERRNF G

Global Smart Investment Limited (i)

BLEE R E AR AR ()

Hinloon Investments Limited (i)

M R AR F (i)
Jack Rock Development Limited (i)

%

30

45.89

31.25

30

50

48.6

30

48
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BE I

Investment holding

BE TR

Investment holding

BE I

Investment holding

BT

Investment holding

Yy 26 8%

Property development

E XSy

Property investment

BEER-YEERLE S
Investment holding, property

development and trading

BE I

Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

40. T EHE QA THE (H)

AEBFRFERT
EERBRAEES
A E Az b Al
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

share capital/

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)

TEXER

Principal activities

BE AT REB registered capital

Name of associate held by the Group
%

7 a0 BB S R F (i) i) 15

Nanjing Xingning Enterprises Co., Ltd. (ii)(iii)

AR B A R A R 37.5

Oxwell Holdings Limited

K (R k) 5 bz BH 38 BR A A (i) (i) 48

Pacific (Fujian) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (ii)(iii)

K3 (R &5 6 7 %8 B3 A R 2 F (i) (ii) 48

Pacific (Fuzhou) Resort Enterprises Ltd. (ii)(iii)

K im A A R A 50

Sky Full Enterprises Limited

R M B S b E A PR A R (i) (i) 22.5

Suzhou Fengsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (ii)(iii)

R B B 0 A R A (1) 50

Tian An Hotels International Limited (i)

R PR R AT MR 2 ] (i) (i) 25

Tianjin International Building Co., Ltd. (ii)(iii)

T K 2 A BR A A (i) 50

Yue Xiu Tian An Management Company Limited (i)

2 BR iR OR B R A PR D (i) (i) 40.38

Zhao Qing Golf and Development Co., Ltd. (ii)(iii)
153

e

Property development

B B

Investment holding

) 3k 8%

Property development

R R R

Golf course operation

BB I

Investment holding

9

Property development

5 5 & B

Hotel management

YR E

Property investment

Yy 3 B

Property management

R R R

Golf course operation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

40. XXHEQTFHF (FA)

() 7E B £ s A

(ii) 7 B G M AR ST K A% A

(iii) oA 45 E I A R R 2 B S s
Ik 4%/ ) S ] 42 il 2

41. EBRHEEFAAFR

NoEFEE AT A Z—H AEER

RZE G IVACE: RER RN SN
A e B AL 2 A

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i) Operating in the PRC

(ii) Established and operating in the PRC

(iii) Subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities held by the

associates of the Group.

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

At 31st December, 2002, the Group had interests in the following jointly
controlled entities, all of which are corporate joint ventures established in
the PRC:

AEBEfRE
ot it & A< L A
TE Proportion
R i B of registered
Principal capital held
HEZH AT LB place of by the FEE¥K 5
Name of jointly controlled entity operation Group Principal activities Joint venture period
%
5 1 [ B A R A A =z 55 WIEERRE —ANNELH =B FAFE
Beijing Nanhu Hwayuan Beijing Property development 16 years from 13th July, 1994
Apartment Co., Ltd.
mREKREARA JLa 40 YELE —JUNNERLH + B # =4
Beijing Tian An Building Beijing Property investment 30 years from 10th May, 1986

Company Limited

MR % S5 7 B 3 A R WM
Changzhou Tianan Real Estate Changzhou
Development Co., Ltd.

JEE M T 2 A A R R R % &
A BRA T Panyu
Guangzhou Panyu Energy
Conservation Scientific &
Technology Park Development
Co., Ltd.

51 WERE —AAFFEFZA AR EE A+ LE
Property development 49 years from 18th December, 1990

49  WIERE “EZERFELANHEZTEF
Property development 20 years from 6th July, 2000
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4. TERAREZEHATDFE (8)

B A 3R &5 R MR (4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

HE_ZTZT_F+-_A=+—HILFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

AEBEfE
& 8 & A L Bl
TE Proportion
S it B of registered
Principal capital held
HEZEHARERE place of by the FEEHK i3
Name of jointly controlled entity operation Group Principal activities Joint venture period
%
LGS E R RA R i N/AG)  WEERE — NN+ —AZ T HAR A
Shanghai Min Hoong Real Shanghai Property development 25 years from 25th November, 1992
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
RINBY B K %W 36 A R A wI 50 WRBE —ANERA — B =
Shenzhen ITC Tian An Co., Ltd. Shenzhen Property investment 28 years from st September, 1988
TRYIK % BHS A R ) w I 50 WIEBREBE —ANFENA L HELF
Shenzhen Tian An Cyberpark Shenzhen o B8 P 50 years from 7th April, 1990
Co., Ltd. Property development
and investment and
investment holding
RERZRWEEARA A R 55 REWE —AREFZAZHAERN 4
Wuhan Tian An Hotel Co., Ltd. Wuhan Hotel operation 40 years from 29th December, 1986
WHRLHARBEEARA A i3] 60 WIEEE CET—ENAZHNEEANTE
Wuxi Tian An Baojie Properties Wuxi Property development 60 years from 24th August, 2001
Co., Ltd.
BT R LR LA RA T &M 4875  HEEEIE —ANEE-AZ TR+ 4
Yuexiu Tian An Building Guangzhou Hotel operation 22 years from 24th January, 1987
Company Limited
T L L) 2 TR A PR LM 53 WM —NWNWAE=ZAZ T ANHER T4
Zhejiang Union Real Property Hangzhou Property letting 50 years from 28th March, 1996
Development Co., Ltd.
TR EZmEEERRARAA I 40 WELE “ERTHEZAANARR
Shenzhen Property investment 20 years from 6th March, 2002

() AEEERGECEZETHEE

W) 2 TR AT 4> T 60% 2 Tk A o

(i) The Group is entitled to a 60% share of profit in certain phases of the

development properties of the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2002

42. EER

WoEFZ-HE+_A=+—H>

(F) A 4= B i R & Bk Je iR
134,699,000 & ( = & & — 4F ¢
115,601,000%5 J6) 2 50% ( — &% —
iF 1 50%) HE 75 1F £ A5 4 [ HE 3 B
4 4 -

(Z0) 755 [ A% B O e A PR ) R
{H 500,757,000 6 ( — F & — 4
500,568,000%5 70) 2 HE 25 1 7 $RAT 4G
T AR FERATIE L 2 A

() 7 4 [ 1% 4R 47 77 3K 75,012,000 JC
(= FE—41:36,965,000% 70) M th
HTHBARRE 2 FERYE B
J 2 o ) 2 R ARG ) SRR
11 {E 43 7 £ 615,316,000% 70 (&%
—4£1133,917,000% 7T) ~ 812,818,000
WL (X E — 4 668,063,000
JG) ~ 74,284,000 o0 ( . EF — 4R
45,153,000%5 JC) J2 127,489,000 G
(% —4 1 47,333,000% 00) % 4R
TR 2 A A2 T 4R AT (5 A Z 44 -

(T) 7 % | % J& 1 {E 3% 59,000,000 G
(= FE—4:62,000,000% 70) 2 %
EYELBITERG TALE — 3t
I 72 il A m] SRAT AR B 2 dE A

5

A 52 5% 1R 1 {E 3% 109,230,000 JC
(T —IF ) 2 BREYEER
B oy A HE $143,011,000% 70 (&
F— A ) Z KA o

R EE AL A S B AR B

Tian An Development (Dalian) Company
Limited$ 4 (E35,114,00095 7T 2 4= 5 HE £
VB 2y B B R A o IR i —FF 48
JEE TN ff I

42. PLEDGED ASSETS

At 31st December, 2002,

(a) The Group’s 50% (2001: 50%) interest in SAC with a carrying value
of HK$134,699,000 (2001: HK$115,601,000), was pledged against a
loan facility granted to the Group.

(b) The Group’s interest in Jack Rock Development Limited with a carrying
value of HK$500,757,000 (2001: HK$500,568,000) was pledged against
a bank overdraft facility granted to the Company.

(c) Bank deposits, properties for development, properties under
development, properties for sales and investment properties of certain
subsidiaries with an aggregate carrying value of HK$75,012,000 (2001:
HK$36,965,000), HK$615,316,000 (2001: HK$133,917,000),
HK$812,818,000 (2001: HK$668,063,000), HK$74,284,000 (2001:
HK$45,153,000) and HK$127,489,000 (2001: HK$47,333,000)
respectively were pledged to banks for banking facilities granted to the

Group.

(d) Investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$59,000,000 (2001: HK$62,000,000) were pledged to banks for

banking facilities granted to a jointly controlled entity.

(e) Properties for development with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$109,230,000 (2001: nil) were pledged against a trade payable of
HK$43,011,000 (2001: nil).

At 31st December, 2001, the Group’s 100% interest in Tian An Development
(Dalian) Company Limited with a carrying value of HK$35,114,000 was
pledged against a loan granted to the Group. The pledge was released during
the year ended 31st December, 2002.
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